IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

EDDIE LEE STEADMAN, :

Petitioner, :

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA, : Case No. SC08-2469 Lower Tribunal No. 2D07-4748 Respondent. :

> DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BRUCE P. TAYLOR Assistant Public Defender Fla. Bar No. 224936

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse

P.O. Box 9000-- Drawer PD Bartow, Fl. 33831 (863) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND OF THE CASE

Petitioner was charged in trial court case # 06-9195 with one count of burglary to a vehicle, one count of grand theft of an auto, two counts of aggravated assault, one count of reckless fleeing and eluding, one count of driving on a suspended license and one count of using false identification. Those offenses allegedly occurred on December 4/5, 2006. In a separate information, in Trial Court case # 06-9500, he was charged with one count of driving on a suspended license, one count of aggravated fleeing and eluding, one count of resisting arrest without violence, one count of burglary to an auto and one count of grand theft of an auto. Those offenses allegedly occurred on December 15, 2006. On July 9, 2007 he entered a plea of guilty to all the charges. He was adjudicated guilty as to all counts. As to counts 1 and 2 in case 06-9195, he was sentenced to 5 years in prison, concurrent with each other.

As to counts 3 and 4 in that case he was sentenced to five years in prison, concurrent with each other, but consecutive to the sentences imposed on counts 1 and 2 in that case. As to count 5 in case # 06-9195 he was sentenced to 15 years in prison, consecutive to the first two sentences. In Count 6 he was sentenced to 5 years in prison, and in count 7 to one year in jail. Those sentences were concurrent with each other, but consecutive to the first three sentences. Thus, the total sentence for that case was 30 years in prison. He was not given credit for any time served except as to counts 1 and 2. In case #06-9500, he was sentenced to five years in prison as to counts 1 and 2, to two years in prison as to count 5 and to one year in jail as to count 3. Those sentences were concurrent with each other, but consecutive to the sentences in the other case number. In count 4 he was sentenced to two years in prison, consecutive to all the other sentences. He was not given credit for time served as to count 4 in case # 06-9500. His total sentence was thus 37 years in prison. The appeal to the District Court followed. Petitioner filed a motion to correct sentencing error while that appeal was pending, seeking credit on all sentences for all time previously served by Petitioner while waiting sentencing. The motion was denied. The District Court of Appeal affirmed the judgment and sentence, citing only its own previous decision in Gisi v. State, 948 So. 2nd 816 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2007), rev. granted 952 So. 2nd 1189 (Fla. 2007). In briefs to the District Court, both Petitioner and

Respondent in this cause stated the outcome of this case would be controlled by the outcome in this Court of Gisi This petition followed. Following the filing of the Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Court undersigned counsel discovered a typographical error in that notice. Also, following the filing of the Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction in this cause, this Court issued its opinions in Gisi v. State, 34 Fla. Law Weekly S94 (Fla. 2009), and Rabedeau v. State, 34 Fla. Law Weekly S51 (Fla. 2009), granting credit for time served on all the consecutive sentences in those cases, placing the decision of the District Court in this cause in conflict with an opinion of this Court. Contemporaneously with the submission of this brief, an amended/corrected Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction is being filed in the District Court, correcting those points.

ISSUES

1. Does Issue in the Second District's Opinion in <u>Eddie</u> <u>Steadman v. State of Florida</u>, Case No. 2D07-4748 (Fla. 2nd DCA March 30, 2007) Involve a Question Certified to be of Great Public Importance?

2. Does Decision of the Second District in <u>Eddie Steadman v.</u> <u>State of Florida</u>, Case No. 2D07-4748 (Fla. 2nd DCA March 30, 2007) conflict with a decision of this Court?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Second district's opinion cites a previous opinion of that Court which certifies the essential issues raised in this case to be of great public importance. By so citing the previous decision, the District Court was also certifying the issue in the instant case to be of great public importance. Also, this Court has since ruled in <u>Gisi</u>, creating an express conflict between the District Court's decision and this Court's ruling in Gisi.

ARGUMENT

1. Does Issue in the Second District's Opinion in <u>Eddie</u> <u>Steadman v. State of Florida</u>, Case No. 2D07-4748 (Fla. 2nd DCA March 30, 2007) Involve a Question Certified to be of Great Public Importance?

Fla.R.A.P. 9.030(a)(2)A(v) provides for the discretionary review by this Court of any decision of a District Court that passes upon a question certified to be of great public importance by the District Court. The opinion of the District Court in the instant case affirmed the Petitioner's judgments and sentences, citing only the decision in <u>Gisi v. State</u>, 948 So. 2nd 816 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2007), rev. granted 952 So. 2nd 1189 (Fla. 2007). In that case, the District Court certified the following question to be of great public importance: "Is a Defendant, on resentencing, entitled to credit on each newly imposed consecutive sentence for prison time already served on the original concurrent sentences?".

This Court, in <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So. 2nd 418 (Fla. 1981) held that such a citation, without more, in an opinion of a district court, was sufficient to trigger this Court's discretionary jurisdiction of review. Although the <u>Jollie</u> decision did not involve matters certified to be of great public importance, no logical distinction can be seen in allowing such a citation of authority in the opinion of a district court to bestow discretionary jurisdiction for one purpose, but not for another.

By only referencing <u>Gisi</u>, it is submitted the District Court certified the question presented in this case to also be of great public importance. Undersigned counsel suggests the question in this case could be succinctly put as "Is a Criminal Defendant entitled to credit on each newly imposed consecutive sentence for county jail time already served while awaiting the imposition of the sentences?"

Furthermore, although the issue in this case involves credit for county jail time while awaiting initial sentencing, and not prison time from serving a portion of the sentence in the same case previously, the <u>Gisi</u> Court relied on and was admittedly persuaded by the logic of the First District in <u>Barnishin v. State</u>, 927 So. 2nd 68 (Fla. 1st DCA 2006) which did deal with the issue of credit for jail time while awaiting sentencing. The District Court's reliance on <u>Barnishin</u> in the <u>Gisi</u> decision is further support for Petitioner's position that the issue in the instant case has been certified to be of great public importance.

Now that <u>Gisi</u> and <u>Rabedeau</u> have been decided, it is submitted that justice requires a decision in the instant case so that Petitioner may have the same credit for time served as others similarly situated, which he would have received had the timing of his case been only slightly different.

2. Does Decision of the Second District in <u>Eddie Steadman v.</u> <u>State of Florida</u>, Case No. 2D07-4748 (Fla. 2nd DCA March 30, 2007) Expressly Conflict with a Decision of this Court?

This ground was not placed in the initial Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction, because it did not exist at the time of the initial filing. However, the ground

should still be considered as long as no prejudice results to the opposing party, <u>Roberts v. State</u>, 566 So. 2nd 848 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990). Furthermore, this Court may review an entire case once jurisdiction is accepted, <u>Bell v. State</u>, 394 So. 2nd 979 (Fla. 1981).

As both parties conceded in briefs to the District Court, the outcome in <u>Gisi</u> dictated the outcome in the instant case. Now that <u>Gisi</u> and <u>Rabedeau</u> have been decided, this Court has jurisdiction to review this cause under Fla. R. A. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv) as well because the decision of the district Court in this case expressly conflicts with this Court's opinions, Jollie, supra.

CONCLUSION

This Court should accept review of the decision of the Second District on the question of whether a criminal defendant is entitled to credit for time served in jail while awaiting sentencing on all consecutive sentences, or only on the first such sentence imposed.