IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

EDDIE LEE STEADMAN,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. SC08-2469

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR REVIEW FROM THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

BILL McCOLLUM ATTORNEY GENERAL

SUSAN M. SHANAHAN Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 976059 Concourse Center 4 3507 E. Frontage Road, Suite 200 Tampa, Florida 33607-7013 (813)287-7900 Fax (813)281-5500

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent submits its own statement of the case and facts, as follows:

On January 5, 2007, Petitioner was charged in trial court number 06-9195 with burglary of a conveyance (count one), grand theft (count two), aggravated assault (counts three and four), fleeing or attempting to elude (count five), driving while license suspended or revoked (2 or more prior convictions) (count six), and giving false identification to law enforcement (count seven).

On January 16, 2007, an amended information was filed in trial case number 06-9500 charging Petitioner with driving while license suspended or revoked (2 or more prior convictions) (count one), aggravated fleeing or attempting to elude (count two), resisting an officer without violence (count three), burglary of a conveyance (count four), and grand theft of a motor vehicle (count five).

A plea hearing was held on July 9, 2007, in which Petitioner, who was represented by counsel, voluntarily entered a plea of guilty to all charges in both cases. On August 31, 2007, a sentencing hearing was held. The State advised the court it was seeking 30 years state prison as Petitioner had four prior felonies. In trial case 06-9195 the court sentenced Petitioner to five years in prison with credit for time served as to count one. As to count two, Petitioner was sentenced to five years in prison concurrent with count one. As to count three, Petitioner was

1

sentenced to five years in prison consecutive to counts one and two. Petitioner was sentenced to five years in prison as to count four concurrent with count three but consecutive to counts one and two. As to count five, Petitioner was sentenced to 15 years in prison consecutive to the other sentences. As for count six, Petitioner was sentenced to 5 years in prison consecutive to the other sentences. In count seven, Petitioner was sentenced to one year in jail concurrent with count six.

In case 06-9500, Petitioner was sentenced to five years imprisonment as to count one, consecutive to the other sentence. In count two he was sentenced to five years in prison concurrent with count one. As for count three, Petitioner was sentenced to one year county jail concurrent with counts one and two. In count five Petitioner was sentenced to two years in prison concurrent with counts one, two and three. In count four he was sentenced to two years imprisonment consecutive to all other sentences.

On February 20, 2008, Petitioner filed a motion to correct sentencing error which was denied by the trial court on March 6, 2008. On December 10, 2008, the Second District Court of Appeal per curiam affirmed Petitioner's convictions and sentences citing <u>Gisi v. State</u>, 948 So. 2d 816 (Fla. 2d DCA), <u>review granted</u>, 952 So. 2d 1189 (Fla. 2007).

2

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Appellant has not demonstrated any basis under either the Florida Constitution or the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure for this Court to review the per curiam opinion of the Second District Court of Appeal. There is no conflict between the instant case and those cited by Petitioner, nor has the issue been certified as one involving a question of great public importance by the Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case. Because there is no express and direct conflict between the decisions, and there has been no question certified by the District Court to be of great public importance in this case, the State respectfully asks this Honorable Court to deny jurisdiction of this case.

ARGUMENT

WHETHER THE PER CURIAM OPINION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>STEADMAN V. STATE</u>, 997 SO. 2D 417 (FLA. 2D DCA 2008), INVOLVES A QUESTION CERTIFIED TO BE OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE AND WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH A DECISION OF THIS COURT.

The parameters of the Florida Supreme Court's appellate jurisdiction are set forth in article V, section 3, of the Florida Constitution and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A). These sections identify the several bases for this Court's exercise of its discretionary jurisdiction to review district court of appeal decisions, as follows:

- (i) expressly declare valid a state statute;
- (iii) expressly affect a class of constitutional or state
 officers;
- (iv) expressly and directly conflict with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law;
- (v) pass upon a question certified to be of great public importance;
- (vi) are certified to be in direct conflict with decisions of

other district courts of appeal;

Fla. R. App. P. Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(2007).

In his jurisdictional brief, Petitioner does not properly allege any of these bases for review. Rather, he claims the per curiam opinion by the Second District Court of Appeal which simply cited to its decision in <u>Gisi v. State</u>, 948 So. 2d 816 (Fla. 2d DCA), <u>review granted</u>, 952 So. 2d 1189 (Fla. 2007), triggered this Court's discretionary jurisdiction.

Furthermore, Gisi has been decided by this Court and is inapplicable to the facts in the instant case. Gisi v. State, 34 Fla. L. Weekly S94 (2009). The question in Gisi, certified to be great public importance, was whether a of defendant, on resentencing, is entitled to credit on each newly imposed consecutive sentence for prison time already served on the original concurrent sentences. This Court answered the question in the However, Gisi involved resentencing where the affirmative. defendant had already served 5 years on each of his concurrent Therefore, this Court determined that when he was sentences. resentenced to three consecutive 15 year terms, he was entitled to time served on each of the prior counts prior to resentencing.

In the instance case, Petitioner has time served awaiting trial and/or sentencing on two separate criminal episodes flowing from the two different informations filed on different days. In the instant case the initial sentences included concurrent and consecutive time and the two separate cases were sentenced consecutive to each other. Those sentences gave Petitioner appropriate time served on the initial sentences and not on the consecutive sentences, as it should be. To rule otherwise the imposition of appropriate consecutive sentencing would become meaningless.

Petitioner fails to identify any of the conditions set forth

5

in rule 9.030(a)(2)(A), which would invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction. Because Petitioner has failed to allege a valid basis to invoke this Court's jurisdiction, this Court should dismiss the request for discretionary review.

CONCLUSION

Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court decline to accept jurisdiction to review this case.